
Date Published: 12 June 2019     

Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel Complaints 
Subcommittee

Monday 24 June 2019 at 2.00 pm

Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN Andrea Clarke

2  APOLOGIES Andrea Clarke

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST Andrea Clarke

EXEMPT ITEM

In respect of the following items the Chair may move the resolution set out below:

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be 
excluded from the meeting because it is likely that if members of the public were present there 
would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 & 2 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12 A to the Act (Information relating to any individual and/or information which is 
likely to reveal the identity of an individual) and the public interest in withholding the information 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the public.

4  CONSIDERATION OF A NON-CRIMINAL COMPLAINT (Pages 1 - 4)

The complaint is concerning the conduct of the Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Commissioner.

The Sub-Committee protocol is included in the agenda pack.

The Sub-Committee’s role is to facilitate informal resolution; this is about 
solving, explaining or clearing up, or settling a matter directly with the 
complainant without an investigation or formal proceedings. It is not a 
disciplinary process and does not involve any sanction.

Chairperson

Membership –  Cllr Steve Robinson and Cllr Will Windsor-Clive Cllr Ray Brassington

Independent Members - Martin Smith



    

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer 
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 / e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the 
start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Andrea Clarke, Senior Democratic Services Adviser
:01452 324204 e-mail: andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Will Members please sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel
Complaints Sub-Committee

Protocol

1. Background

1.1 The Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel protocol for complaints 
delegates the handling of non criminal complaints regarding both 
quality of service and conduct to the monitoring officer (Chief Executive 
of the Commissioner’s Office) to broker local resolutions, resolve the 
complaints and restore relationships.

1.2 The Police and Crime Panel then receives detail of complaints as part 
of the Chief Executive’s report at each meeting. 

1.3 If local resolutions can not be brokered and the complainant wished to 
take the matter further then this could be brought to the attention of the 
Panel. A sub-committee is then set up to consider the complaint.

2. Complaints Sub-Committee

2.1 The Complaints Sub-Committee is made up of the lead members of the 
Panel as well as one of the available independent members. 

2.2 Once the Panel is notified that the Chief Executive of the 
Commissioner’s Office has been unable to broker local resolution, the 
Chair of the Panel should contact the complainant to understand if they 
wish to pursue the complaint further. In the event that they wish to 
proceed further, a Sub-Committee meeting will be convened within 
three weeks.

2.3 The Panel’s Scrutiny Officer will write to the complainant, setting out 
timescales and providing details about the procedure, given the 
complainant an opportunity to make further comments and whether 
they wish to attend the meeting.

2.4 The Panel’s Scrutiny Officer will write to the person complained about 
providing details of the procedure, giving him/ her an opportunity to 
make further comments and inviting them to the attend the meeting. 

2.5 An agenda will be published 5 clear working days before the meeting 
and the items handling the complaint will be in exempt session on the 
grounds of: 

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 the public be excluded from the meeting because it is likely that if 
members of the public were present there would be disclosure to them 
of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 & 2 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12 A to the Act (Information relating to any individual and/or 
information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual) and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



3. Procedure at the meeting

3.1 The Police and Crime Panel, and therefore the Sub-Committee, are 
prohibited from investigating the complaint. The Secretary of State 
does, however, approve the use of providing an opportunity for the 
complainant and person complained against to comment on the 
complaint.

3.2 The Sub-Committee will receive a copy of the original complaint as well 
as correspondence between the complainant and the Commissioner’s 
Office regarding attempts to broker the informal resolution. 

3.3 The Sub-Committee will invite the complainant and the person 
complained against to attend in person. This is to allow the members 
to be clear with regards to the subject of the complaint, as well as the 
actions already taken to resolve it.  

3.4 Once the Sub-Committee is satisfied that they are clear on the nature 
of the complaint and have heard from both parties, they will make a 
decision on how best to proceed in facilitating a resolution.

4. Decision

4.1 If the Sub-Committee determines that the complaint should be subject 
to informal resolution it should then consider what action it may take to 
assist in clarifying or resolving the issues raised in the complaint. The 
Sub-Committee’s freedom to act is governed by the legislation. In 
particular, it should note:  

a) The Sub Committee may not conduct an investigation of the matter. 
It may use powers delegated to it to require the person complained 
against to provide information or documents or attend before it to 
answer questions or give evidence, as this will not be regarded as 
an investigation. However, any step intended to gather information 
about the complaint, other than inviting the comments of the 
complainant and the person complained against, will be likely to 
amount to investigation and should not therefore be undertaken. 

b) The Sub Committee does not have the power to overturn a 
decision by the person complained against, to censure them, to 
require them to make an apology, or to issue an apology on their 
behalf.  

4.2 In terms of informal resolution, this is about solving, explaining or 
clearing up, or settling a matter directly with the complainant without an 
investigation or formal proceedings. It is not a disciplinary process and 
does not involve any sanction. 

 The Sub- Committee will decide whether the complaint has been 
satisfactorily dealt with and, subject to any representations by the 
complainant, may decide to treat the complaint as having been 
concluded. In such an event the reasons will be recorded and both 
parties notified.

Page 2



 If, on considering the complaint, the Sub-Committee feels that the 
matter needs to be formally resolved, then it may ask that further action 
is taken to resolve the complaint, such as:

o Recommending that further information or an explanation of a 
situation is provided to the complainant.

o Recommending a change to a policy or practice operated by the 
Police and Crime Commissioner

o Requesting that the person complained against offers an 
apology to the complainant (no apology may be tendered on 
behalf of the person complained against unless that person has 
admitted the alleged conduct and agreed to the apology)

4.3 Both parties should be advised in writing as to the outcome of the sub-
committee’s discussions.

4.4 The Police and Crime Panel may publish its record of the outcome of 
the informal resolution of the complaint, if it considers publication to be 
in the public interest having invited the complainant and person 
complained against to comment, and having considered their views.

4.5 The Sub-Committee will notify the Police and Crime Panel at the next 
scheduled meeting, the outcome of the process. 

Page 3



PROCEDURE FOR HEARING OF THE COMPLAINT

The following procedure is for the consideration of the complaint by the 
complaints sub-committee under exempt session.

1. Member preparation

2. Complainant to clarify the nature of the complaint

3. Sub-Committee to ask questions (to seek clarification on complaint and 
attempts at resolution).

4. Seek Complainant’s views on the publication of outcome following 
meeting.

5. Break

6. Person complained against to make response to the Complaint

7. Person complained against to comment on attempts at informal 
resolution

8. Sub-Committee to ask questions (to seek clarification on complaint and 
attempts at resolution).

9. Seek the views of the Person complained against regarding the 
publication of outcome following meeting

10. Break

11. Discussion on next steps

12. Notification of outcome to complainant and person complained against 
in writing. 

Page 4


	Agenda
	4 Consideration of a non-criminal complaint

